Oracle[®] Fusion Middleware

Using WebCenter Portal Performance Pack 12*c* (12.2.1.2.0) **E73212-01**

October 2016

Documentation for performance diagnostics tool that can be used by developers to easily identify slow requests and drill down to specific hot paths and methods. Oracle Fusion Middleware Using WebCenter Portal Performance Pack, 12c (12.2.1.2.0)

E73212-01

Copyright © 2016, Oracle and/or its affiliates. All rights reserved.

Primary Authors: Jennifer Collins, Savita Thakur

This software and related documentation are provided under a license agreement containing restrictions on use and disclosure and are protected by intellectual property laws. Except as expressly permitted in your license agreement or allowed by law, you may not use, copy, reproduce, translate, broadcast, modify, license, transmit, distribute, exhibit, perform, publish, or display any part, in any form, or by any means. Reverse engineering, disassembly, or decompilation of this software, unless required by law for interoperability, is prohibited.

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice and is not warranted to be error-free. If you find any errors, please report them to us in writing.

If this is software or related documentation that is delivered to the U.S. Government or anyone licensing it on behalf of the U.S. Government, then the following notice is applicable:

U.S. GOVERNMENT END USERS: Oracle programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, delivered to U.S. Government end users are "commercial computer software" pursuant to the applicable Federal Acquisition Regulation and agency-specific supplemental regulations. As such, use, duplication, disclosure, modification, and adaptation of the programs, including any operating system, integrated software, any programs installed on the hardware, and/or documentation, shall be subject to license terms and license restrictions applicable to the programs. No other rights are granted to the U.S. Government.

This software or hardware is developed for general use in a variety of information management applications. It is not developed or intended for use in any inherently dangerous applications, including applications that may create a risk of personal injury. If you use this software or hardware in dangerous applications, then you shall be responsible to take all appropriate fail-safe, backup, redundancy, and other measures to ensure its safe use. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates disclaim any liability for any damages caused by use of this software or hardware in dangerous applications.

Oracle and Java are registered trademarks of Oracle and/or its affiliates. Other names may be trademarks of their respective owners.

Intel and Intel Xeon are trademarks or registered trademarks of Intel Corporation. All SPARC trademarks are used under license and are trademarks or registered trademarks of SPARC International, Inc. AMD, Opteron, the AMD logo, and the AMD Opteron logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Advanced Micro Devices. UNIX is a registered trademark of The Open Group.

This software or hardware and documentation may provide access to or information about content, products, and services from third parties. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates are not responsible for and expressly disclaim all warranties of any kind with respect to third-party content, products, and services unless otherwise set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle. Oracle Corporation and its affiliates will not be responsible for any loss, costs, or damages incurred due to your access to or use of third-party content, products, or services, except as set forth in an applicable agreement between you and Oracle.

Contents

Pr	eface	v
	Audience	v
	Documentation Accessibility	v
	Related Resources	v
	Conventions	v
1	Getting Started with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack	
	About Webcenter Portal Performance Pack	1-1
	Before You Begin with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack	1-2
	How to Install WebCenter Portal Performance Pack	1-2
	How to Undeploy WebCenter Portal Performance Pack	1-3
	Quick Tour of the Landing Page	1-3
2	Working with Events	
	What can I do with the Events List?	2-1
	How do I locate hot paths in my code?	2-2
3	Working with Method Statistics and Dump Threads	
	How do I find methods for optimization?	3-1
	How do I locate cause of serious performance issues?	
4	Configuring Instrumentation	
	How do I change configuration settings to suit my system needs?	4-1
	How do I add methods to the instrumentation configuration?	

Preface

Topics:

- Audience
- Documentation Accessibility
- Related Resources
- Conventions

Audience

The Using WebCenter Portal Performance Pack guide is intended for administrators and developers who want to identify slow requests and drill down to specific hot paths and methods to diagnose performance issues.

Documentation Accessibility

For information about Oracle's commitment to accessibility, visit the Oracle Accessibility Program website at http://www.oracle.com/pls/topic/lookup? ctx=acc&id=docacc.

Access to Oracle Support

Oracle customers that have purchased support have access to electronic support through My Oracle Support. For information, visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/ topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=info or visit http://www.oracle.com/pls/ topic/lookup?ctx=acc&id=trs if you are hearing impaired.

Related Resources

For more information, see:

Oracle WebCenter Portal

https://www.oracle.com/middleware/webcenter/portal/resources.html

Conventions

The following text conventions are used in this document:

Convention	Meaning
boldface	Boldface type indicates graphical user interface elements associated with an action, or terms defined in text or the glossary.
italic	Italic type indicates book titles, emphasis, or placeholder variables for which you supply particular values.
monospace	Monospace type indicates commands within a paragraph, URLs, code in examples, text that appears on the screen, or text that you enter.

1

Getting Started with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack

This section describes how to get started with the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack tool.

Topics

- About Webcenter Portal Performance Pack
- Before You Begin with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack
- How to Install WebCenter Portal Performance Pack
- How to Undeploy WebCenter Portal Performance Pack
- Quick Tour of the Landing Page

Important: WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is entitled as part of Management Pack for WebCenter license. WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is available as an add-on as part of Oracle WebCenter Portal.

About Webcenter Portal Performance Pack

WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is a performance diagnostics tool that can be integrated seamlessly into the development phase where detailed analysis is often required.

Using WebCenter Portal Performance Pack you can quickly identify and address critical performance bottlenecks in your application. We've pre-configured WebCenter Portal Performance Pack to instrument the main concerning areas for Oracle WebCenter Portal; however, you can easily modify the configuration to fit any J2EE web application without restarting the running system.

WebCenter Portal Performance Pack:

- Makes it easy for you to identify slow requests
- Lets you drill down to specific hot paths and methods.
- Doesn't overwhelm you with too much data; instead provides you with only the most critical information.
- Aggregates data in different ways, which makes it easy for you to spot problem areas.
- Provides hints for optimization opportunity

Before You Begin with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack

WebCenter Portal Performance Pack has no prerequisites. However, it's helpful to be familiar with Java technology, The Hypertext Transfer Protocol (HTTP), WebLogic Server, as well as Oracle WebCenter Portal or any webapp running in the target JVM.

Before you begin using WebCenter Portal Performance Pack, it's helpful if you're familiar with the following technologies:

• Java, the foundation for virtually every type of networked application and the global standard for developing and delivering embedded and mobile applications, games, Web-based content, and enterprise software.

www.java.com

• HTTP, the underlying protocol used by the World Wide Web to define how messages are formatted and transmitted.

en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hypertext_Transfer_Protocol

• Oracle WebLogic Server, provides a standard set of APIs for creating distributed Java applications that can access a wide variety of services, such as databases, messaging services, and connections to external enterprise systems. End-user clients access these applications using Web browser clients or Java clients.

Understanding Oracle WebLogic Server

• Oracle WebCenter Portal, a web platform that allows you to create intranets, extranets, composite applications, and self-service portals.

Introduction to WebCenter Portal in Using Oracle WebCenter Portal

How to Install WebCenter Portal Performance Pack

WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is made available as part of the WebCenter installation.

To install WebCenter Portal Performance Pack:

- 1. Go to <INSTALL_HOME>/wcportal/webcenter/archives/perfSense.zip
- 2. Install WebCenter Portal Performance Pack:
 - **a.** Unzip perfSense.zip into a directory on the server where your target JVM is located.
 - **b.** Run ./deploy.sh <WLS_SERVER_NAME> to install the perfSense agent and webapp.

For example, ./deploy.sh WC_PORTAL.

Note that you'll be prompted to enter the admin server's Administrator **Username** and **Password** to install webapp.

- 3. Access WebCenter Portal Performance Pack using this URL: http:// <host>:<port>/perfsense
- **4.** Sign in using a **Username** and **Password** that belongs to the Administrators role defined in WebLogic server.

You're directed to the landing page, which provides access to all the resources required to monitor and diagnose performance issues related to the selected Oracle WebCenter Portal instance.

Notes:

- The deploy. sh command installs two components:
 - perfSense agent: Instruments JVM
 - perfSense webapp: Displays the performance data for the instrumented JVM
- If you restart the target JVM, you must reinstall the perfSense agent.

Run./deploy.sh -a <WLS_SERVER_NAME>

 If you restart the target JVM, the perfSense webapp remains installed. However, if you need to reinstall the webapp:

Run./deploy.sh -w <WLS_SERVER_NAME>

• You can run . /deploy. sh to see the script usage.

How to Undeploy WebCenter Portal Performance Pack

Undeploy is a command-line tool that you can use to clean up the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack footprint from within the target JVM.

When you first deploy the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack app to the target JVM, WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is attached as a Java agent in the target JVM. Once attached, instrumentation of the target classes/methods occurs so that event and method analysis can be performed. When you undeploy WebCenter Portal Performance Pack, any changes that were made to the target JVM are rolled back and the JVM returns to its initial clean state.

To undeploy, run ./undeploy.sh <WLS_SERVER_NAME>

This is what happens:

- The WebCenter Portal Performance Pack webapp is undeployed from the target JVM
- All currently instrumented classes are rolled back to their initial state.

classloaders are reloaded with non-instrumented classes.

 All WebCenter Portal Performance Pack related threads are removed from the target JVM.

The target application can still function normally without you having to perform a restart.

Quick Tour of the Landing Page

When you start WebCenter Portal Performance Pack, you're prompted to enter your login credentials. You should enter the username and password that belongs to the Administrator's role in the WebLogic Server. You're then directed to the landing page. This page provides access to all the resources required to monitor and diagnose performance issues related to the selected Oracle WebCenter Portal instance.

When you start WebCenter Portal Performance Pack, the target is automatically set to the JVM WebCenter Portal Performance Pack it's installed against. Also note the

location of the user menu. This menu has options for viewing your language preferences, accessing help (including the Getting Started overlay), and signing out.

			Events List Method Statistics T	hread Dump	Help 🕨
					Sign Out
ange: From	05/02/16 07:47	AM	Image: To 05/02/16 08:47 AM Image: Open content of the second content of th		Language 🕨
Timestamp	~	Туре	Event	Duration (r	About ns)
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:51.077	GET	/webcenter/afr/partition/le/n/default/opt/difable-ASPEN-6083.js	324	
2016/05/02 - 0	18:45:49.609	POST	/webcenter/portal/admin/settings?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju	1510	
2016/05/02 - 0	18:45:40.955	POST	/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2f7f10?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5	608	
2016/05/02 - 08	18:45:26.179	POST	/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2f7f10?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5	114	
2016/05/02 - 08:45:25.672 PC		POST	/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2f7f10?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5	1616	
2016/05/02 - 08	8:45:15.321	GET	/webcenter/ullibs/jquery/1.11.1/jquery.min.js	429	
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:14.236	GET	$webcenter/profilephoto/4332443445463130303045453131453639464543423144324632353744313931 // CON1507_x Resource Method=wsrp_1000000000000000000000000000000000000$	157	
2016/05/02 - 0	18:45:13.698	POST	/webcenter/portal/home?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=3	3370	

Use the landing page as a starting point to identify slow requests and drill down to diagnose performance bottlenecks. The tabbed pages make it easy to navigate between the available features. The information accessed from the **Help** button is based on the page you currently have open. The Events List is the default page.

Now that you have an overview of the landing page, let's take a closer look at the key features that you'll be using.

Feature	Description	More Info
Events List	Displays a list of events the server's processed during the time range specified. The initial range is set from the present to 1 hour back.	See Working with Events
	From this page you can:	
	 Change the specified time range or click Get Recent Data to get events from the previous hour. View the HTTP request type for each request Sort requests by duration (in milliseconds) to find slower requests Hover over an event to view the full event name. This includes the full URL and any query strings. Drill down to a specific event details where you can diagnose problem areas based on instrumentation and 	

Feature	Description	More Info
Method Statistics	Displays all methods from the present to the last reset date.	See How do I find methods for optimization
	From this page you can:	
	• Sort methods by method, hits, or duration	
	 Identify problem methods based on the duration and number of hits for each method. 	
	 Optimizing methods with higher hits and/or longer duration might have an higher impact on your system's performance and scalability, especially the lower-level methods. Hover over a method to view the full method name. You can also copy the name to the clipboard. Click Reset Statistics to erase all historical data and update the last reset date to the current date and time. This feature gives you a fresh start to begin collecting method statistics for a new test scenario. 	
Thread Dump	Displays all threads returned from the JVM in the order provided. Each calling stack is a collapsible section that contains the method calls.	See How do I locate cause of serious performance issues?
	From this page you can:	
	• Filter threads based on thread health. (ACTIVE, STANDBY, SUSPENDED, STUCK)	
	• Filter threads based on their current state. (WAITING, RUNNABLE, TIMED-WAITING, PENDING)	
	• Expand specific threads to view the methods associated with that thread Select to watch specific methods.	
	Note: You can't watch methods associated with WebCenter Portal Performance Pack as they're disabled.	

Feature	Description	More Info
Configuration	Displays the current configuration settings as well as key methods that have been configured to be instrumented.	See Configuring Instrumentation
	From this page you can:	
	 Enable and/or disable instrumentation and sampling 	
	Change configuration settings	
	 Reset the configuration back to the previous saved configuration 	
	• Click Update to commit changes but not save to the configuration file	
	 Click Save to save changes to the configuration 	
	Add additional class/methods to be instrumented	
	 Select to watch or unwatch pre- configured methods 	

2

Working with Events

This section discusses how to use the event listing as a starting point for performance analysis. It describes how to drill down into specific requests and diagnose potential bottlenecks and problem areas using instrumentation and sampling tree as well as analyzing method statistics.

Topics

- What can I do with the Events List?
- How do I locate hot paths in my code?

What can I do with the Events List?

The Events List is the starting point for performance analysis. It provides you with a list of events the server has processed during a specified date and time range. Duration of time taken to process each event can help you determine what events require further analysis.

The Events List is the default page that you see when you sign in, as shown.

				Events List Method Statistic	s Thread Dump	Configuratio
tange: From	05/02/16 07	:47	AM	Image: To 05/02/16 08:47 AM Image: O Apply Get Recent Data		
Timestamp		•	Туре	Event	Duratio	n (ms)
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:51.077		GET	/webcenter/afr/partition/le/n/default/opt/d/table-ASPEN-6083.js	324	
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:49.609		POST	/webcenter/portal/admin/settings?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju	1510	
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:40.955		POST	/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2f7f10?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5	608	
1016/05/02 - 06:45:26:179 POST /webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2t_7f107Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5			114			
2016/05/02 - 08.45.25.672 POST /webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10/f5902cb2f_7f107Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5			1616			
2016/05/02 - 08-45:15.321 GET /webcenter/uillbs/iguery/11.11.1/guery.min.js		429				
2016/05/02 - 08.45.14.236 GET /webcenter/profilephoto/4332443445463130303045453131453639464543423144324632353744313931//CON1507_xResourceMethod=wsrp		157				
2016/05/02 - 0	8:45:13.698		POST	/webcenter/portal/home?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=3	3370	

When you first access this page, the date and time range is set from the present to 1 hour back, and the list of events during that time are displayed by default. You can scope a different set of events by changing one or both date/time selections. Click **Apply** to refresh the view. Click **Get Recent Data** to get the set of events up to the last hour.

The following information is provided for each event shown. You can sort events by *Timestamp*, *Type*, or *Duration*.

Event	Description
Timestamp	Displays the date and time the event was processed. By default, the events are sorted to display the latest event first.
Туре	Displays the HTTP method for this request (GET/POST)

Event	Description
Event	Displays the event name as (path/resource); the host name and port part of the event may be truncated to only show the beginning of the path. You can hover over the name to display the full URL as well as any query strings.
	Click the name to view the details for this event. For more information about event details, see How do I locate hot paths in my code?.
Duration (ms)	Displays the time (in milliseconds) taken to process this event.

How do I locate hot paths in my code?

Use the Event Details page to drill down to a specific request's profile information and identify hot paths and methods using the instrumented method tree, sampling method tree, as well as SQL and method statistics.

WebCenter Portal Performance Pack is automatically configured to ignore nonessential information and track only key methods; therefore, when you drill down on a specific request you're not overwhelmed with a massive amount of data to search through. The Event Details page contains the following sections to help you pinpoint possible problem areas:

- Event Details Shows top-level information about the event
- Instrumented Method Tree Shows how much time is being spent on individual key methods
- Sampling Method Tree Compliments the instrumented method tree by identifying cases where the configured methods may have missed other key methods
- SQL Shows how much time was spent making calls to the database
- **Method Statistics** Shows method timings associated with this method within the scope of this particular event (request)

Thread Name (ACTIVE) Exc Event POST http://s Referer http://sicd.vas/ User Agent Mozilla/5.0 k/ EciD 18745c07-85 Tenant Name GLOBAL	140.26							
Date-Time 2016/05/02-0 Duration 114 ms Base Method weblog/core Thread Name [ACTIVE] Exc Event POST http://s Reterar http://s/co/esc Exil D 1874/6/07-85 Exil D 1874/6/07-85 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tabe/WC_PC	3.46.26							
Duration 114 ms Base Method weblogichen Thread Name [ACTIVE] Ex Event POST http://s Referer http://sickai. User Agent Mozillaris 0/ ECID 18745c07-ess Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location table/WC_PR	345.26							
Duration 114 ms Base Method weblogichen Thread Name [ACTIVE] Ex Event POST http://s Referer http://sickai. User Agent Mozillaris 0/ ECID 18745c07-ess Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location table/WC_PR								
Base Method weblogic/serv Thread Name (ACTIVE) Exe Event POST http://s Referer http://sicolaid.ss /0 vf ECID 18745c07-c93 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location thoe/WC_PO								
Event POST http://s Referer http://sic.04sk User Agent Mozillat5.0 (V ECID B745c07-e38 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tahoe/WC_PO	let/internal/WebAppServietContext.execute							
Referer http://sic.04.sk User Agent Mozillat5.0 (V ECID B745c07-e36 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tahoe/WC_PC	cuteThread: '6' for queue: \weblogic.kernel.Default (self-tuning)							
User Agent Mozilla/5.0 (V ECID 18745c07-e36 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tahoe/WC_Pe	c04sko.us.oracle.com:8888/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10f5902cb2f7f10?Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=5	5						
ECID 18745c07-e38 Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tahoeWC_PO	0.us.oracle.com:8888/webcenter/portal/mainNavArea_Page_2eb852ac_10/5902cb2f7/107Adf-Window-Id=coe5u7yju&Adf-Page-Id=3							
Tenant Name GLOBAL Store Location tahoe/WC_Po	ser Agent Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 6.1; WOW64; Trident/7.0; nr:11.0) like Gecko							
Store Location tahoe/WC_Po	CCD 18745c07-e388-4703-8936-d5596c4b7435-000053cf							
_	Tenant Name GLOBAL							
Instrumented Method Tree	Store Location tahoe/WC_Portal/20160502/084526.179-IdmEvents.zip							
Instrumented Method Tree Sampling Method Tree								
▶ SQL Calls								
Method Statistics								

You can collapse and expand each section so that you can zero in on the most critical information needed.

About Event Details

The event details provides information about the selected event, including but not limited to:

- Timestamp Date and time the event was processed by the server
- Duration Displays the total time taken to process the event.
- Base Method Displays the root method as package/class.method
- Event Displays the HTTP method (GET/POST) followed by a separator and the full URL, and any parameters
- User Agent Displays the account that the customer used for authentication on the application (the target application being monitored)

About the Instrumented Method Tree

Because of the complexity of our code, a single request may contain a significant number of methods. With that in mind, we use a configuration algorithm to only include key methods in the instrumented method tree so that you can immediately focus on what is important for performance analysis. The instrumented tree is represented as a hierarchical table of data. Using this hierarchical tree format, you can easily determine the most expensive methods because those methods have a pink background and their statistics are highlighted in red. It's OK to ignore the high-level methods, which by nature are slower as they contain other methods. For example, the base method weblogic/servlet/internal/WebAppServletContext.execute appears slow because the time reflects the total timing for the whole request.

⊿ Instrumented Method Tree							
Method	Total	Other	Hits	Avg	Мах	Min	Watch
✓ weblogic.servlet.internal.WebAppServletContext.execute	114	39	1	-	1		
✓ weblogic.servlet.internal.TailFilter.doFilter	61	0	1	÷	-	-	
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.Lifecycleimpl.execute	61	0	1	-	-	-	
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImplexecutePhase	61	8	1	-	-	-	
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImpl_restoreView	28	0	1	-	-	-	
	27	23	1	-	-	-	
a oracle.webcenter.peopleconnections.preference.internal.model.PreferencesManagerJPAImpl.getPreferences	2	1	2	1	2	0	
oracle.jdbc.driver.OraclePreparedStatement.executeInternal	1	-	1	-	-	-	
oracle.adf.share.mt.util.MultiTenantStorage.get	1	0	494	0	1	0	✓
▶ oracle.mds.core.MDSSession.getMetadataObject	1	0	12	0	1	0	
oracle.webcenter.portal.runtime.controller.impl.adf.PortalViewHandler.restoreView	1	-	1	-	-	-	
javax.faces.component.UIComponent.visitTree	1	0	2	0	1	0	✓
▶ oracle.adf.controller.v2.lifecycle.PageLifecycleImpl.prepareModel	8	1	1	-	-	-	
oracle.webcenter.portal.runtime.controller.impl.adf.PortalAdfcActivityProvider.getActivityId	2	0	7	0	2	0	✓
▶ oracle.webcenter.webcenterapp.internal.view.shell.WCSiteTemplatesManagerImpl.getCurrentSiteTemplate	13	1	1	-	-	-	•
oracle.webcenter.portal.runtime.PortalRuntimePhaseListener.getCurrentBasePage	1	0	1	-	-	-	
oracle.jbo.mom.DefinitionManager.hasDefinitionBeenUpdated	3	0	90	0	1	0	•
oracle.mds.core.MDSSession.getMetadataObject	1	•	4	0	1	0	V
oracle igf.ids.UserManager.searchUsers	10	-	1	-	-	-	✓

Although you want to ignore the actual high-level method, you should drill down further into this method by expanding the node and seeing if in fact it's a hot path with low-level methods eating up the time. The following information can help you determine areas that need further investigation.

Instrumented Tree Item	Description
Method	Displays as package/class.method. The full method is shown in a tooltip on hover.
Total Time	Displays the total time spent on this method.

Instrumented Tree Item	Description
Other Time	Indicates the time taken by methods that are not included in instrumentation.
Hits	Number of times this method is called during execution of the request
Min/Max/Avg	If the number of hits is greater than 1 for this method, the minimum, maximum, and average times are calculated.
Watch	By default, all methods in the tree are watched. Click here to remove the method from the instrumentation.

The sampling method tree works alongside the instrumented method tree because it can catch expensive methods that are not yet instrumented. Therefore, if you see a large Other Time statistic calculated, you should examine the methods included in the sampling.

Note: When you remove a method from instrumentation only that method is removed. Lower-level methods remain in the tree as they are selected based on the algorithm not because they are children of an instrumented method.

About the Sampling Method Tree

The sampling method tree operates in concert with the instrumented method tree. The stack traces are sampled periodically and this tree displays the methods that are slower than the sampling rate. For example, if a request takes 1 second to execute and the sampling rate is 50 milliseconds, sampling is done 20 times. The sampling method tree shows you the frequency (weight) a method was tracked during the lifecycle of the request and if it's taking too long to process. By default, the Sampling rate is set to 50 milliseconds, but you can change the rate based on your requirements.

For more information about changing the default rate and other pertinent configuration settings, see How do I change configuration settings to suit my system needs?.

⊿ Sampling Method Tree			
Method	Weight	Percent	Watch
✓ weblogic.servlet.internal.WebAppServletContext.execute:-1	26	100	
69			
weblogic.servlet.internal.StubSecurityHelper\$ServletServiceAction.run:286	26	100	
2			
a oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImplexecutePhase:-1	22	84	
2			
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.ResponseRenderManager.runRenderView;-1	21	80	
9			
org.apache.myfaces.trinidadinternal.skin.provider.BaseSkinProviderfindSkinMetadata:278	1	3	
18			
✓ oracle.adf.view.rich.render.RichRenderer.encodeAlI:1640	12	46	
29			
sun.nio.ch.EPollArrayWrapper.epollWalt-2	1	3	
4			
org.apache.myfaces.trinidadinternal.skin.icon.Baselmagelcon.renderlcon:182	1	3	
60			

The tree is represented as a hierarchical table of data. Just like the instrumented tree, you can expand or collapse the methods inside the tree. Instead the table indicates the number of child processes. To see these methods, just click on the method. This opens the Method Calls Details dialog, which displays the complete call stack for this method. From this dialog you can select to watch any methods in the calling stack.

Method org.apache.myfaces.trinidad.view.ViewDeclarationLanguageWrapper.renderView:101	
Complete Call Stack for this Method	
Method	Watch
org.apache.myfaces.trinidad.view.ViewDeclarationLanguageWrapper.renderView.101	
org.apache.myfaces.trinidad.view.ViewDeclarationLanguageWrapper.renderView:101	
$org.apache.my faces.trinidad internal.application.View Declaration Language Factory Impl \ Change Applying \ VDLW rapper.render \ View \ 338$	
com.sun.faces.application.view.MultiViewHandler.renderView:134	
javax.faces.application.ViewHandlerWrapper.renderView:337	
javax.faces.application.ViewHandlerWrapper.renderView:337	
javax.faces.application.ViewHandlerWrapper.renderView:337	
javax.faces.application.ViewHandlerWrapper.renderView:337	
org.apache.myfaces.trinidadinternal.application.ViewHandlerImpl.renderView:170	
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.ResponseRenderManager.runRenderView1	✓
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImplrenderResponse:-1	✓
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImplexecuteRenderResponse:-1	

If you find any methods in the sampling tree that you think should be instrumented for further analysis you can select to watch them. You don't have to stop and restart the tool to add a method to the configuration for instrumentation.

- 1. Select the Watch option.
- 2. Go to WebCenter Portal and execute the request.
- 3. Go to the Event List and drill down on the new request.

You can see the method that you chose to watch is now included in the instrumented method tree. You don't have to stop and restart the target portal server.

Note: The sampling tree also displays any methods in your custom code that is slowing down the system performance. You can choose to instrument these slow class.methods by simply selecting to Watch them.

About SQL

When processing requests, Oracle products, including WebCenter Portal, could make some calls to the database. The SQL section contains a listing of all these calls during the processing of this request. It shows how many times each call was made as well as the average time it takes to process. Hover over the SQL name to view the full SQL. You can copy the full SQL to the clipboard.

▶ Event Details					
▶ Instrumented Method Tree					
Sampling Tracked Method Tree					
⊿ Event SQL Calls					
SQL	Total	Hits	Avg	Max	Min
SELECT ID, NAME, VALUE, VERSION, MAP_PROPERTY_ID, PORTAL_ID FROM WC_PORTAL_ENTITY_MAP_ENTRY WHERE (MAP_PROPERTY_ID = ?)	3	9	0	1	0
SELECT ID, AUX_DATE_1, AUX_DATE_10, AUX_DATE_2, AUX_DATE_3, AUX_DATE_4, AUX_DATE_5, AUX_DATE_6, AUX_DATE_7, AUX_DATE_8, AUX_DATE	20	2	10	20	0
SELECT ID, AUX_DATE_1, AUX_DATE_10, AUX_DATE_2, AUX_DATE_3, AUX_DATE_4, AUX_DATE_5, AUX_DATE_6, AUX_DATE_7, AUX_DATE_8, AUX_DATE	1	1	-	1	1
BEGIN mds_internal_common.checkDocumentExistence((1;2;3); END;	10	13	0	1	0
SELECT ID, PROPERTY_NAME, VERSION, ENTITY_ID, PORTAL_ID FROM WC_PORTAL_ENTITY_MAP_PROPERTY WHERE (ENTITY_ID = ?)	3	9	0	1	0
SELECT ID, AUX_DATE_1, AUX_DATE_10, AUX_DATE_2, AUX_DATE_3, AUX_DATE_4, AUX_DATE_5, AUX_DATE_6, AUX_DATE_7, AUX_DATE_8, AUX_DATE	20	12	1	13	0
BEGIN mds_internal_shredded.readDocument(:1,:2,:3,:4,:5,:6,:7,:8,:9,:10,:11); END;	10	3	3	6	2
SELECT /*+ INDEX(p MDS_PATHS_N7) USE_NL (p t) */ PATH_NAME, PATH_DOCID, PATH_CONTENTID, PATH_VERSION, PATH_LOW_CN, PATH_HIGH_CN, TX	41	13	3	10	0
SELECT ID, AUX_DATE_1, AUX_DATE_10, AUX_DATE_2, AUX_DATE_3, AUX_DATE_4, AUX_DATE_5, AUX_DATE_6, AUX_DATE_7, AUX_DATE_8, AUX_DATE	13	26	0	1	0
SELECT ID, CREATED, CREATOR, IS_EXPORTED, IS_LAZY, IS_STRONG, MODIFIED, MODIFIER, NAME, ORD, PROPAGATE_NAMESPACE, VERSION, PORT	5	10	0	1	0

This information, along with the information gleaned from the instrumentation method tree and sampling method tree can be very useful in narrowing your performance issue.

About Method Statistics

The Method Statistics section provides aggregated statistics for all the methods executed for this request in a list. Instead of expanding and collapsing nodes to find specific methods, you can locate them more easily here. You can then see from the aggregated statistics if they are expensive and need to be optimized.

For more information about method statistics, see How do I find methods for optimization?.

Working with Method Statistics and Dump Threads

This section discusses how to find methods for optimization as well as how to find methods that are causing serious performance issues.

Topics

- How do I find methods for optimization?
- How do I locate cause of serious performance issues?

How do I find methods for optimization?

The Method Statistics page is used to help you identify methods that can be optimized based on aggregated statistics.

Let's say you have expanded your company and will be hiring 50 new employees. This means that additional users will soon be performing the set of tasks that current users perform in Oracle WebCenter Portal on a daily basis. You want to know if you can optimize any methods to make sure that performance isn't compromised by adding these new users.

To find methods for possible optimization:

- **1.** Go to the Method Statistics page and click **Reset Statistics** to remove all the current methods listed.
- 2. Sign in to Oracle WebCenter Portal and perform the required set of tasks.
- **3.** Go to the Method Statistics page.

Every instrumented method that was executed during the test has been aggregated and is listed in the table.

	Events List	Method	Statistics	Thread Dump	Configuratio
Last Reset: 2016/05/02-08-45-13 (less than 1 day)				R	eset Statistics
Method	Total	Hits	Avg	Max	Min
oracle.webcenter.peopleconnections.preference.internal.model.PreferencesManagerJPAImpl.getPreferences	153	41	3	141	0
oracle.jdbc.driver.OraclePreparedStatement.executeInternal	1418	190	7	208	0
oracle.webcenter.portal.persistence.impl.PersistenceManagerimpl.findById	160	1615	0	14	0
weblogic.servlet.internal.UnsynchronizedPrintWriter.write	618	18929	0	404	0
oracle.webcenter.portal.persistence.impl.ReferenceManagerImpl.getReference	44	774	0	10	0
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.component.AdfViewRoot.encodeAll	2934	4	733	1751	128
oracle.webcenter.activitystreaming.internal.model.util.FrameworkUtils.getPreferenceMaps	5	1	5	5	5
oracle.webcenter.portalframework.sitestructure.handler.PortalFrameworkViewidProcessor.process	26	18	1	9	0
oracle.webcenter.activitystreaming.internal.model.util.ResourceUtils.getActivityMessage	2	3	0	1	0
oracle.mds.core.MDSSession.getMetadataObject	208	361	0	44	0
oracle.webcenter.page.model.security.CustomPagePermission.implies	5	1617	0	1	0
oracle.adfinternal.controller.util.LogUtils.reportIncident	542	4	135	465	1
oracle.adfinternal.view.faces.lifecycle.LifecycleImpl.execute	897	5	179	261	61
oracle.webcenter.framework.translations.TranslationsMDSResourceBundle.handleGetObject	3	1	3	3	3
oracle.webcenter.portalframework.sitestructure.rc.AdfPageResourceFactory.isViewable	8	10	0	6	0
oracle.webcenter.webcenterapp.model.security.WebCenterSecurityUtils.hasPermission	2	2	1	1	1

By scanning the list of methods and concentrating on the number of hits and total time for each method, you can easily determine methods that are the most expensive. By eliminating high-level methods you can then limit your search to low-level methods. For these methods you should also take into consideration the minimum, maximum, and average times. By optimizing the methods that are most expensive you should not find any performance issues when new users are added.

How do I locate cause of serious performance issues?

If users are experiencing serious slowness or the system has hung when using Oracle WebCenter Portal, you can perform a thread dump.

The thread health status is what's assigned to threads based on certain time thresholds that have been allotted for specific actions to complete. For example, let's say a thread is waiting for response from the database. While it's waiting for a new request, it's given the health status STANDBY. By default, the request timeout is set to 10 mins in the WebLogic Server. If a request has not finished processing after the time specified, the health status changes to STUCK.

Threads are also assigned a server status that you can see displayed at the end of the thread name.

To perform a thread dump, simply click the Thread Dump tab. The page opens with the results of the dump. You can filter the data by health status (ALL, ACTIVE, STANDBY, SUSPENDED, STUCK and/or server status (WAITING, RUNNABLE, TIMED-WAITING, and PENDING). Note that only states that are present in the current thread dump appear in the drop-down menus.

		Thread Dump	Configuratio
hread Health Filter STANDBY * Thread State Filter WAITING *			
STANDBY] ExecuteThread: '24' for queue: 'weblogic.kernel.Default (self-luning)', id=112, Daemon, WAITING			
[STANDBY] ExecuteThread: '8' for queue: 'weblogic kernet Default (self-funing)', Id=96, Daemon, WAITING			
[STANDBY] ExecuteThread: '1' for queue: 'weblogic kernel Default (self-tuning)', id=22, Daemon, WAITING			
I (STANDBY) ExecuteThread: '7' for queue: 'weblogic kernel Default (self-tuning)', id=95, Daemon, WAITING			
Method			Watch
java.lang.Object.wait (line -2)			
java.lang.Object.wait (line 502)			
weblogic.work.ExecuteThread.waitForRequest (line 314)			

If your system has a serious performance issue, you can rapidly diagnose the problem causing the slowdown by filtering by the status STUCK.

You can expand specific threads to view the methods associated. Note that the methods may take awhile to load. You can then select to instrument suspect methods by selecting to watch them. You don't have to stop and restart WebCenter Portal Performance Pack or the target JVM to begin watching these suspect methods.

Configuring Instrumentation

This section discusses how to make changes to the current configuration settings, and how to add methods to and remove methods from the configuration.

Topics

- How do I change configuration settings to suit my system needs?
- How do I add methods to the instrumentation configuration?

How do I change configuration settings to suit my system needs?

The Configuration page lets you enable instrumentation and sampling, as well as change certain configuration settings.

			Events List	Method Statistics	Thread Dump	Configuration
Enable Instrumentati	n 🗹 🛛 Enable	Sampling 🗹				
Revert to Sav	ed Save U	pdate				
Configuration Settings						
" Sleep When Idle	ms) 5,000	× ^				
Log L	INFO					
* Event Cache	Size 3	× ^				
* Max Parallel Thre	ads 10	× ^				
* Min Collection Timing	ms) 1	× ^				
* Sampling Interval	ms) 50	× ^				
* Start D	alay 50	× ^				
Write Quick Event Re	FALSE					
Instrumented Methods						
					Add Method	
Method					Watch	
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.isOutdentAllowed					~	

You can change the following configuration settings.

Configuration Setting	Description
Enable Instrumentation	Select to enable method instrumentation. Unselect to disable method instrumentation.
Enable Sampling	Select to enable method sampling. Unselect to disable method sampling. Note: You can only change this setting if Instrumentation is enabled.
Sleep When Idle	Defines how frequent to wake the internal thread to process instrumentation events. Default is <i>5 seconds</i> . Note that if you set the frequency to a greater value, you may see a delay with events appearing in the events list. A frequency less than the default time means the events list is more up-to-date but there's a cost with system overhead.

Configuration Setting	Description				
Log Level	 Defines the log-level. The default is <i>INFO</i>. Valid values are: <i>NONE</i> — No logging <i>ERROR</i> — A WebCenter Portal Performance Pack system error has occurred and must be fixed <i>WARNING</i> — A problem has occurred but it shouldn't affect the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack system functionality <i>INFO</i> — Provides informational messages regarding the state of the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack system <i>PERF</i> — Provides informational messages regarding instrumentation <i>DEBUG</i> — Provides detailed messages to assist in the diagnosis of a problem with the WebCenter Portal Performance Pack system 				
Event Cache Size	Defines the cache size of the monitored event. The default is 3. The greater the cache size, the faster the reload time but with more memory required.				
Max Parallel Threads	Defines the maximum number of threads to be monitored in parallel. Default value is <i>10</i> . For a heavily loaded system you may want to increase this setting to avoid missing instrumentation. However, the greater the number, the more memory required.				
Collection Timing (ms)	Defines the minimum method timing to be collected for profiling. Methods that spend less than this timing are not recorded or reported. Default value is <i>1 millisecond</i> . This setting lets you reduce the amount of data that's collected so you can concentrate on slower methods.				
Sampling Interval (ms)	Defines the interval between two consecutive samplings. Default is 50 <i>milliseconds</i> . The smaller the sampling interval, the more precise the sampling but with greater system overload.				
Start Delay (ms)	Defines the delay time before instrumentation and sampling starts. Default is <i>50 milliseconds</i> . This setting lets you ignore any small and fast events.				
Write Quick Event Report	Defines whether or not to produce a separate event report using text format. Default is <i>False</i> . Valid values are <i>True</i> or <i>False</i> .				

After you make changes, you can:

- Update Saves the changes but does not update the configuration file.
- **Save** Saves the changes and updates the configuration file.

Here's the location of the configuration file: <domain_home>/tahoe/ <server_name>/tahoe.cfg

• **Revert to Saved** — Removes your changes and restores the last saved configuration settings.

How do I add methods to the instrumentation configuration?

You can add and remove methods to and from the instrumentation configuration using the sampling method tree, the thread dump, or the Configuration page. You can also add and remove methods from the instrumented method tree.

You don't have to stop and start WebCenter Portal Performance Pack or the target JVM when you add or remove methods. You just perform the task.

To add or remove methods using the sampling method tree:

1. Go to the Configuration page and verify instrumentation and sampling have been enabled.

Note: Once you've enabled the instrumentation and sampling, you must access the webapp to ensure that data is loaded in the sampling tree.

- **2.** Go to the Sampling Method Tree section to see the key methods that may have been missed in the configuration.
- **3.** Find the method you want to instrument and select **Watch**. To remove methods from being instrumented, just unselect **Watch** from the instrumentation and/or sampling method trees.

A confirmation dialog is displayed for both actions.

Now let's say you've added some new code to Oracle WebCenter Portal and you want to monitor the performance. You can add and/or remove instrumented methods manually from the Configuration page.

The second se				
	Add Method			
Method	Watch			
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.isOutdentAllowed				
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.addChildNode				
oracle.webcenter.portal.apl.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.getPage				
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.applyProperties				
oracle: webcenter.portal.apl.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.addPageVariant				
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.isIndentAllowed				
pracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.getPageVariants				
oracle.webcenter.portal.apl.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.populatePropertyBean				
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.getChildNode				
oracle.webcenter.portal.apl.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.isMoveupAllowed	×			
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.removePageVariant	V			
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.isMovedownAllowed	×.			
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.removeChildNode	V			
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.createNavigationPage				
oracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.getChildNodes				
vracle.webcenter.portal.api.impl.NavigationNodeImpl.setPage	×			
vracle.security.jps.az.internal.runtime.policy.AbstractPolicyImpl.readFromStore				
veblogic.servlet.internal.UnsynchronizedPrintWriter.write				
weblogic.utils.classloaders.ChangeAwareClassLoader.getResource				

To add new methods to the configuration

- **1.** Go to the Configuration page and verify instrumentation and sampling have been enabled.
- 2. Go to the Instrumented Method section and simply add your method (package.class.name) and click Add Method.
- **3.** Repeat the previous step until you've added all the methods you're interested in from your new code.
- **4.** Save the configuration.

- 5. Sign in to Oracle WebCenter and perform functions using your new code.
- **6.** Return toWebCenter Portal Performance Pack and monitor the performance for your new methods using the Events list or Method Statistics.

Note: Methods displayed in "Grey" colored *Italics* indicate classes that are yet to be loaded by the JVM. You should wait for the class to be invoked by the program and start watching it once it is loaded. Methods displayed in "Blue" indicate changes that are not yet saved to the configuration file.

You can remove methods from the configuration by simply unselecting **Watch** for selected methods and then saving the configuration.

Note: If you click **Update**, you'll change the properties in memory and the properties do take effect; but they don't persist to file until you click **Save**.